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M E M O R A N D U M
TO:

Missouri Public Service Commission Official Case File

Case No. GE-2003-0137, Missouri Association of Natural Gas Operators

FROM:
John Kottwitz, Energy Department – Safety/Engineering

 /s/ John Kottwitz        1/8/03         

   /s/ Robert S. Berlin 01/09/03         

Project Coordinator / Date


General Counsel's Office / Date

SUBJECT:
Staff Recommendation for Approval of a Waiver from Certain Provisions of 49 CFR Part 192, and the Corresponding Provisions of 4 CSR 240-40.030

DATE:

January 8, 2003

Applications
On October 8, 2002, several members (Applicants) of the Missouri Association of Natural Gas Operators (MANGO) filed an APPLICATION FOR PERMANENT WAIVER OF COMPLIANCE requesting a waiver from the corresponding provisions of 4 CSR 240-40.030(9)(Q) and 49 CFR §192.481 that require pipelines exposed to the atmosphere to be reevaluated at intervals not exceeding 3 years.  The waiver would only apply to service lines and the Applicants propose to conduct these atmospheric corrosion reevaluations at intervals not exceeding 39 months, but at least once each third calendar year.  

The Applicants’ primary concern is that the current interval does not match the leak survey interval for these same pipelines.  This waiver would match these compliance intervals, so that the two requirements can be met at the same time.  The Applicants submit that gas safety would not be compromised by the wavier, which will allow for more efficient use of gas safety resources.  The Applicants also note other compliance intervals in the federal regulations that have been amended to allow similar flexibility in scheduling inspections without compromising gas safety.  The Applicants further noted that in Case No. GE-2000-543, the Missouri Public Service Commission (Commission) granted various members of MANGO a permanent waiver from the corresponding provisions of 4 CSR 240-40.030(9)(Q) and 49 CFR §192.285(c) regarding intervals for qualifying persons to make plastic pipe joints.  That waiver allowed a similar change from the required 12 month interval to “at least once each calendar year, but at intervals not to exceed 15 months” to allow greater flexibility in scheduling.  The U.S. Department of Transportation - Research and Special Programs Administration (RSPA) was notified of the waiver granted in Case No. GE-2000-543, and RSPA replied that it did not object.

On November 26, 2002, the Applicants filed a MOTION FOR LEAVE TO AMEND APPLICATION to amend the list of Applicants and attached an amended application.  On December 10, 2002, the Commission issued an Order allowing the Applicants to amend their pleadings.  Further on December 10, 2002, the Applicants filed a SECOND MOTION FOR LEAVE TO AMEND APPLICATION AND WITHDRAWAL OF FIRST MOTION FOR LEAVE to add further to the list of Applicants and attached the SECOND AMENDED APPLICATION FOR PERMANENT WAIVER OF COMPLIANCE (Application).  The only difference between the current Application (December 10) and the original pleading (October 8) is the larger list of Applicants requesting the waiver.

Annual Report and Assessment Status

The Applicants include utilities and municipalities.  Each Applicant that is a gas utility filed a 2001 annual report with the Commission in 2002.  Commission records indicate that these same gas utilities are current on their FY-2003 assessments.

Staff Response
The Staff has reviewed the Application and finds the requested waiver is acceptable in regards to pipeline safety.  The Staff agrees with MANGO that the waiver will not reduce pipeline safety.  The waiver involves only a minor change in the required interval for atmospheric corrosion reevaluations of service lines, so it is the same as the Commission’s required interval for service line leak surveys at 4 CSR 240-40.030(13)(M)2.B.  The change in the required interval from “not exceeding three years” to “not exceeding thirty-nine (39) months, but at least once each third calendar year” allows additional scheduling flexibility while only increasing the maximum interval by up to three months.  The facts that similar flexibility has been provided by RSPA for intervals in other pipeline safety rules and by the Commission in Case No. GE-2000-543 provide precedent that this waiver request is not inconsistent with pipeline safety.

Staff Recommendations
As provided for in 49 USC §60118(d), the Staff recommends that the Commission waive compliance, in part, by the Applicants with 49 CFR §192.481, which corresponds to 4 CSR 240-40.030(9)(Q).  Specifically, the Staff recommends that the Applicants be allowed to conduct atmospheric reevaluations of service lines at an alternative maximum interval “not exceeding thirty-nine (39) months, but at least once each third calendar year”.  In accordance with 49 USC  60118(d), such a waiver "is not inconsistent with gas pipeline safety".
As provided for in 49 USC §60118(d), the Secretary of Transportation must receive written notice at least sixty (60) days prior to the effective date of any waiver.  If the Commission grants a waiver, the Staff recommends the effective date be set seventy-five (75) days from the date the order is issued.  Seventy-five (75) days will allow for adequate processing and mail time, and will not detract from the sixty (60) days required for review by RSPA.  Further, the Staff would recommend that the notice sent to the Secretary of Transportation:

1)
be transmitted by Federal Express (RSPA recommends this to ensure delivery);

2)
contain the Application, this memorandum and the Commission order, so that all justification is provided to RSPA; and,

3)
be addressed to Stacey L. Gerard, Associate Administrator for Pipeline Safety; U.S. Department of Transportation - RSPA/Office of Pipeline Safety; 400 Seventh Street, S.W., Room 7128; Washington, DC 20590.
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